VIRGINIA BOARD FOR ASBESTOS, LEAD, AND HOME INSPECTORS
Tentative AGENDA

THURSDAY, February 9, 9:00 A.M.
BOARD ROOM 2—SECOND FLOOR

DEPARTMENT OF PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL REGULATION
PERIMETER CENTER—9960 MAYLAND DRIVE
RICHMOND, VA 23233

L CALL TO ORDER
I1. EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURES

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
a. Board Agenda, February 9, 2023

1Vv. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. Board Meeting Minutes November 10, 2022

V. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD - Five minute public comment, per person, on those items
not included on the agenda with the exception of any open disciplinary or application files

VI CASE FILES *
a. File Number 2022-02306 Hampton, Jamal Romales (HI)
Consent Order (Salva)
b. File Number 2023-00085 Stewart, Garrett Lewis (HI)
Licensing—IFF by Jackson-Bailey
c. File Number 2023-00909 Armijo Avila, Yessica Yamileth (ASB)
Licensing—IFF by Jackson-Bailey

VIL REGULATIONS
a. Regulatory Action Update

VIII. OTHER BUSINESS
a. Home Inspector CPE Audit Report
b. Board Financial Statements
¢. Outreach Update
d. Other Board Business

IX. FUTURE MEETING DATES
a. May 11,2023
b. August 24, 2023
c. November 30, 2023

X. COMPLETE CONFLICT OF INTEREST FORMS AND TRAVEL VOUCHERS

XI. ADJOURN

Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpretative services
should contact the Department at (804) 367-0362 at least ten days prior to the meeting so that suitable

arrangements can be made for an appropriate accommodation. The Department fully complies with the
Americans with Disabilities Act.



* Agenda materials made available to the public do not include disciplinary case files or application files
pursuant to §54.1-108 of the Code of Virginia.



PERIMETER CENTER CONFERENCE CENTER
EMERGENCY EVACUATION OF BOARD AND TRAINING ROOMS
(Script to be read at the beginning of each meeting.)

PLEASE LISTEN TO THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS ABOUT EXITING THE PREMISES IN THE EVENT OF AN EMERGENCY.

In the event of a fire or other emergency requiring the evacuation of the building, alarms will sound.
When the alarms sound, leave the room immediately. Follow any instructions given by Security staff

Board Room 1
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. Upon exiting the room, turn RIGHT. Follow the
corridor to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

Board Room 2
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. (Point) Upon exiting the room, turn RIGHT. Follow the
corridor to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

You may also exit the room using the side door, turn Right out the door and make an immediate Left. Follow the
corridor to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

Board Rooms 3 and 4
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. Upon exiting the room, turn RIGHT. Follow the
corridor to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

Training Room 1
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. Upon exiting the room, turn LEFT. Follow the corridor
to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.

Training Room 2
Exit the room using one of the doors at the back of the room. Upon exiting the doors, turn LEFT. Follow the corridor
to the emergency exit at the end of the hall.

Upon exiting the building, proceed straight ahead through the parking lot to the fence at the end of the lot. Wait there
for further instructions.



VIRGINIA BOARD FOR
ASBESTOS, LEAD, AND HOME INSPECTORS
MEETING MINUTES

The Virginia Board for Asbestos, Lead, and Home Inspectors met on November 10, 2022, at the
offices of the Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation (DPOR), Perimeter
Center, 9960 Mayland Drive, 2" Floor, Board Room 2, Richmond, Virginia 23233.

The following members of the Board were present:

Stacy J. Armentrout Kevin Salva
Sandra Baynes, Vice-Chair Patrick Studley
John E. Cranor Paul D. Thomas

Board members James E. Haltigan, Gene E. Magruder, Chadwick Bowman, Sharad Tandale, and
Louis Walker were not present at the meeting.

The following staff members were present for all or part of the meeting:

Demetrios J. Melis, Director
Kishore Thota, Chief Deputy Director
Trisha L. Lindsey, Executive Director
Stephen Kirschner, Licensing and Regulatory Programs Division Deputy Director
Tanya M. Pettus, Board Administrator
Joseph C. Haughwout, Jr., Regulatory Administrator
Raven C. Custer, Administrative Coordinator

Joshua Laws from the Office of the Attorney General was present.

Ms. Baynes, finding a quorum of the Board present, called the Call to Order
meeting to order at 9:01 a.m.

Ms. Lindsey advised the Board of the emergency evacuation Emergency
procedures. Evacuation
Procedures

Mr. Cranor moved to approve the agenda as amended. Mr. Studley Approval of Agenda
seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:
Armentrout, Baynes, Cranor, Salva, Studley, and Thomas.

Ms. Lindsey introduced Stephen Kirschner, Deputy Director of the  Introduction of Staff
Licensing and Regulatory Programs Division, to the Board.

Mr. Cranor moved to approve the minutes of the August 18, 2022, Approval of
Board meeting and the August 24, 2022, Home Inspectors SB 607 Minutes
Committee meeting as presented. Mr. Salva seconded the motion
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which was unanimously approved by: Armentrout, Baynes, Cranor,
Salva, Studley, and Thomas.

Joe Hudgins introduced himself to the Board as an insurance industry
professional and shared that he and Bob Bradshaw were present for
the item later in the agenda regarding home inspector insurance
requirements.

Mr. Salva recused himself from the meeting for discussion and
deliberation of File Number 2022-01240.

In the matter of File Number 2022-01240, Henry Robert Nice, the
Board members reviewed the Consent Order. Mr. Nice admits to a
violation of 18 VAC 15-40-120.B as provided in Count 1, a violation
of 18 VAC 15-40-130.A as provided in Count 2, a violation of 18
VAC 15-40-130.B as provided in Count 3, and a violation of 18 VAC
15-40-155.6 as provided in Count 4. Mr. Nice consents to the
imposition of a monetary penalty of $125.00 for violation of Count
1, amonetary penalty of $100.00 for violation of Count 2, a monetary
penalty of $125.00 for violation of Count 3, and a monetary penalty
of $500.00 for violation of Count 4, for monetary penalties totaling
$850.00, and Board costs in the amount of $150.00. Mr. Studley
moved to approve the Consent Order as presented. Mr. Cranor
seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:
Armentrout, Baynes, Cranor, Studley, and Thomas.

Mr. Salva returned to the meeting.

Mr. Cranor recused himself from the meeting for discussion and
deliberation of File Number 2022-01580.

In the matter of File Number 2022-01580, Patrick Hayes, the
Board members reviewed the Consent Order. Mr. Hayes admits to a
violation of I8 VAC 15-40-120.B as provided in Count 1, a violation
of 18VAC 15-40-130.B as provided in Count 2, and a violation of
18VAC 15-40-130.C as provided in Count 3. Mr. Hayes consents to
the imposition of a monetary penalty of $200.00 for violation of
Count 1, a monetary penalty of $150.00 for violation of Count 2, and
a monetary penalty of $150.00 for violation of Count 3, for monetary
penalties totaling $500.00, and Board costs in the amount of $150.00.
Mr. Salva moved to approve the Consent Order as presented. Mr.
Armentrout seconded the motion which was unanimously approved
by: Armentrout, Baynes, Salva, Studley, and Thomas.

Public Comment
Period

Recusal of Board
Member

File Number 2022-
01240, Henry Robert
Nice

Return of Board
Member

Recusal of Board
Member

File Number 2022-
01580, Patrick Haves
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In the matter of File Number 2021-01927, Marlon Donnell Moore,
the Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the
investigative file, the transcript, and exhibits from the Informal Fact-
Finding Conference, and the Summary of the Informal Fact-Finding
Conference.

The Board considered each of the charged Violations under Counts
1 through 4. Mr. Salva moved to accept the recommendation of the
Presiding Officer and find Mr. Moore in violation of 18VAC 15-40-
120.A. as outlined in Count 1, I8VAC 15-40-120.B. as outlined in
Count 2, 18 VAC 15-40-130.A. as outlined in Count 3, and 18VAC
15-40-130.B as outlined in Count 4. Mr. Studley seconded the
motion which was unanimously approved by: Armentrout, Baynes,
Salva, Studley, and Thomas.

Mr. Studley then moved to accept the recommended sanctions and
impose a monetary penalty of $475.00 for violation of Count 1, a
monetary penalty of $250.00 for violation of Count 2, a monetary
penalty of $225.00 for violation of Count 3, and a monetary penalty
of $250.00 for violation of Count 4, for monetary penalties totaling
$1,200.00, and to suspend Mr. Moore’s license 30 days after the
effective date of the Board’s final order until Mr. Moore provides
proof satisfactory to the Board that he has completed eight (8) hours
of continuing professional education related to home inspection for
the violations of Counts 1 and 2, as presented in the Summary. Mr.
Salva seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:
Armentrout, Baynes, Salva, Studley, and Thomas.

In the matter of File Number 2022-00879, Scott Robert Sanford,
the Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the
investigative file, the transcript, and exhibits from the Informal Fact-
Finding Conference, and the Summary of the Informal Fact-Finding
Conference.

The Board considered each of the charged Violations under Counts
1 through 3. Mr. Salva moved to accept the recommendation of the
Presiding Officer and find Mr. Sanford in violation of 18VAC 15-
40-120.A. as outlined in Count 1, 18VAC 15-40-130.A. as outlined
in Count 2,and 18VAC 15-40-130.B. as outlined in Count 3. Mr.
Thomas seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:
Armentrout, Baynes, Salva, Studley, and Thomas.

Mr. Thomas then moved to accept the recommended sanctions and
impose a monetary penalty of $275.00 for violation of Count 1, a
monetary penalty of $125.00 for violation of Count 2, and a

File Number 2021-
01927, Marlon
Donnell Moore

File Number 2022-
00879, Scott Robert
Sanford
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monetary penalty of $175.00 for violation of Count 3, for monetary
penalties totaling $575.00 as presented in the Summary. Mr. Salva
seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:
Armentrout, Baynes, Salva, Studley, and Thomas.

Mr. Cranor returned to the Board meeting

In the matter of File Number 2022-01713, Lilians Mardiaga, the
Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the
application file, transcript and exhibits from the Informal Fact-
Finding Conference, and the Presiding Officer’s Summary and
Recommendation.

Mr. Salva moved to accept the recommendation of the Presiding
Officer to deny Ms. Maradiaga’s application for an asbestos worker
license. Mr. Armentrout seconded the motion which was
unanimously approved by: Armentrout, Baynes, Cranor, Salva,
Studley, and Thomas.

In the matter of File Number 2022-02494, Curtis Lee Gowans, the
Board members reviewed the record which consisted of the
application file, transcript and exhibits from the Informal Fact-
Finding Conference, and the Presiding Officer’s Summary and
Recommendation.

Mr. Gowan’s was present to address the Board and wanted to thank
the members for taking the time to consider his application.

Mr. Armentrout moved to accept the recommendation of the
Presiding Officer to approve Mr. Gowans’s application for a home
inspectors license. Mr. Studley seconded the motion which was
unanimously approved by: Armentrout, Baynes, Cranor, Salva,
Studley, and Thomas.

In the matter of File Number 2022-00952, Jacinto Vasquez
Gonsalez, the Board members reviewed the record which consisted
of the application file, transcript and exhibits from the Informal Fact-
Finding Conference, and the Presiding Officer’s Summary and
Recommendation.

Mr. Thomas moved to accept the recommendation of the Presiding
Officer to deny Mr. Gonsalez’s application for an asbestos worker
license. Mr. Salva seconded the motion which was unanimously
approved by:  Armentrout, Baynes, Cranor, Salva, Studley, and

Return of Board
Member

File Number 2022-
01713, Lilians

Mardiaga

File Number 2022-
02494, Curtis Lee
Gowans

File Number 2022-
00952, Jacinto
Vasquez Gonsalez
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Thomas.

Mr. Haughwout provided an update on the current status of the
regulatory review processes for the Board’s regulatory packages.

The general review of the Home Inspector Licensing Regulations is
at the proposed stage. The Board adopted proposed regulatory text
at its meeting on November 4, 2021, and adopted revisions to
proposed regulatory text at its meeting on May 12, 2022. Proposed
amendments have been submitted for Executive Branch review.
Executive Branch review is pending.

Final Lead-Based Paint Renovation, Repair, and Painting Program
(RRP) Regulations (Initial Promulgation) were submitted for
Executive Branch review on January 18, 2022. Executive Branch
review is pending.

The Board authorized filing of a Notice of Intended Regulatory
Action (NOIRA) and formation of a regulatory review committee at
the Board meeting on May 12, 2022, to consider amendments to the
Home Inspector Licensing Regulations as required by Senate Bill
607. The NOIRA was submitted for Executive Branch review on
July 22, 2022. Executive Branch review was completed, and the
NOIRA was published on September 12, 2022. The 30-day public
comment period concluded on October 12, 2022. The regulatory
review committee met on August 24, 2022, and adopted
recommended amendments to the regulations.

The Board authorized filing of a NOIRA for a general review of the
Virginia Asbestos Licensing Regulations and formation of
regulatory review committee. The committee is being formed and
the NOIRA is in development, after which it will be submitted for
Executive Branch Review.

The Board authorized a fast-track action to amend the Virginia Lead-
based Paint Activities Regulations to update 18 VAC 15-30-510 and
documents incorporated by reference. The fast-track action is in
development to be submitted for Executive Branch Review.

Mr. Haughwout provided an update on the SB 607 Committee. Mr.
Haughwout asked the Board to review and consider the public
comments following publication of the NOIRA. After reviewing the
public comments, Mr. Haughwout asked the Board to consider the
draft proposed Board responses to the public comments.

Regulatory Action
Update

Update to SB 607
Committee
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After discussion, Mr. Salva moved to adopt the proposed responses
as presented. Mr. Armentrout seconded the motion which was
unanimously approved by:  Armentrout, Baynes, Cranor, Salva,
Studley, and Thomas.

Mr. Haughwout asked the Board to review and consider the proposed
amendments to the regulations as recommended by the committee.

After discussion and review, Mr. Studley moved to accept the
proposed amendments as presented. Mr. Salva seconded the motion
which was unanimously approved by: Armentrout, Baynes, Cranor,
Salva, Studley, and Thomas.

Mr. Haughwout requested that the Board consider an exempt action
to continue temporary fee reductions for asbestos and lead renewals.

After discussion and explanation of the Callahan Act, Mr. Salva
moved to authorize staff to file an exempt action to amend the
regulations to continue the temporary fee reduction. Mr. Cranor
seconded the motion which was unanimously approved by:
Armentrout, Baynes, Cranor, Salva, Studley, and Thomas.

Joe Hudgins and Bob Bradshaw were present to address the Board
regarding language in the Home Inspector Licensing Regulations
pertaining to the requirements for insurance to be obtained by home
inspectors to qualify for licensure, and to provide the Board with
information regarding state laws pertaining to insurance policies.

The Board took the comments provided under advisement and may
address the concerns during its general review of the Home Inspector
Licensing Regulations.

Ms. Pettus presented the Board with a proposed guidance document
to allow licensure as a landscape architect as a credential in a “related
engineering/health, environmental field” that may qualify an
individual to meet entry requirements as a lead risk assessor.

After lengthy discussion, the Board agreed by consensus to not adopt
the proposed guidance.

Ms. Pettus provided an update of home inspector continuing
professional education (CPE) audits conducted on twenty-five
percent of eligible certified home inspectors beginning on September
21, 2022.

Consider Exempt
Action to Continue
Temporary Fee
Reductions for
Asbestos and Lead

Discussion on Home
Inspector Insurance
Policies

Lead Risk Assessor
Entry Requirements
Guidance

Home Inspector CPE
Audit Report
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Ms. Pettus provided an update of asbestos and lead course audits
conducted between august and November 2022.

Ms. Lindsey provided an overview of an amendment to the Virginia
Uniform Statewide Building Code, which allows for energy
efficiency air leakage testing to be performed by licensed home
inspectors. The Board discussed the processes for this testing as well
as qualifications to perform the test.

Ms. Lindsey provided the Board with the most recent financial
statements for informational purposes.

Ms. Lindsey and Ms. Pettus updated the Board on recent and
upcoming outreach opportunities.

Ms. Lindsey opened the floor for annual nominations of the Board
Chair. Mr. Thomas moved to nominate Ms. Baynes as Board
Chair. Mr. Salva seconded the motion. Ms. Baynes accepted the
nomination. Mr. Salva moved to close the nominations for Chair of
the Board. Mr. Armentrout seconded the motion which was
unanimously approved by: Armentrout, Baynes, Cranor, Salva,
Studley, and Thomas. By acclamation, Ms. Baynes was named
Chair of the Board

Ms. Lindsey opened the floor for annual nominations of the Board
Vice Chair. Ms. Baynes moved to nominate Mr. Cranor as Board
Vice Chair. Mr. Thomas seconded the motion. Mr. Cranor accepted
the nomination. Mr. Salva moved to close the nominations for Chair
of the Board. Mr. Thomas seconded the motion which was
unanimously approved by: Armentrout, Baynes, Cranor, Salva,
Studley, and Thomas. By acclamation, Mr. Cranor was named Vice
Chair of the Board

Ms. Lindsey provided a report from the 2022 Board Member
Training Conference that occurred in October and thanked all of the
Board members that were able to attend.

Mr. Custer provided the Board with information regarding the new
procedure for the distribution of meeting agendas.

Ms. Baynes reminded Board members to complete their conflict of
interest forms.

Asbestos and Lead
Course Audit Report

Discussion of
Amendments to
Virginia Uniform
Statewide Building
Code as it Relates to
Home Inspectors

Board Financial
Statements

Outreach Update

Election of Officers

Report from the 2022
Board Member
Training Conference

Other Business

Conflict of Interest
Forms and Travel
Youchers
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There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:45 Adjourn
a.m.

Gene E. Magruder, Chair

Demetrios J. Melis, Secretary



PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

Five minute public comment, per person, with the
exception of any open disciplinary or application files.



Virginia Board for Asbestos, Lead, and Home
Inspectors

Update on Regulatory Actions

(as of January 31, 2023)

Action: Asbestos and Lead Temporary Fee Reduction

Current Stage: Exempt Final
¢ Final amendments adopted by the Board on 11/10/22.

Submitted to Registrar as exempt action on 12/27/22.
Final amendments published on 1/30/23.
Final regulations will become effective on 3/1/23.

Next Step: N/A

Action: Home Inspector Regulations General Review

Current Stage: Proposed
Board reviewed and considered NOIRA stage public comments on 11/4/21.

Board reviewed and considered committee recommendations, and adopted proposed regulatory
text on 11/4/21.

Proposed regulatory text submitted for Executive Branch review on 2/14/22.

Board adopted revision to proposed regulatory text on 5/12/22.
Currently in Executive Branch review.

Next Step: Executive Branch Review/Public Comment

e Following completion of Executive Branch review, publication of proposed regulation in

Virginia Register, and 60-day public comment period. Comment period will include a public
hearing.

Current Stage: NOIRA

Board authorized filing of NOIRA and formation of regulatory review committee on 5/12/22.
NOIRA submitted for Executive Branch review on 7/22/22. Executive Branch review
completed on 8/16/22.

Committee was formed and met on 8/24/22. Committee adopted recommendations for
amendments to regulation.

NOIRA published in Virginia Register on 9/12/22. Public comment period held from 9/12/22
to 10/12/22.

Board reviewed and considered NOIRA public comments and adopted proposed amendments
to regulation on 11/10/22.

Next Step: Proposed Stage

e Proposed amendments submitted for Executive Branch review.




Virginia Board for Asbestos, Lead, and Home
Inspectors

e Following completion of Executive Branch review, publication of proposed regulation in
Virginia Register, and 60-day public comment period. Comment period will include a public
hearing.

Action: Virginia Asbestos Licensing Regulations General Review

Current Stage: NOIRA
e Board authorized filing of NOIRA and formation of regulatory review committee on 5/12/22.
e Committee has been formed. First meeting to be held on 2/6/23.
e NOIRA submitted for Executive Branch review on 1/23/23. Currently in Executive Branch
review.

Next Step: Committee Review/Executive Branch Review/Public Comment
Regulatory review committee reviews current regulation, and develops recommendations for
new regulation.

Following completion of Executive Branch review, publication of NOIRA in Virginia
Register, and 30-day public comment period.

NOIRA public comments and committee recommendations to be presented to the Board for
consideration and adoption.

Action: Initial Promulgation of Lead-Based Paint Renovation, Repair,
and Painting Regulation

Current Stage: Final Regulation
e Final regulation, as amended, adopted by Board on 8/26/21.
e Final regulation submitted for Executive Branch review on 1/18/22.

Next Step: Executive Branch Review/Final Adoption
e Following completion of Executive Branch review, publication in Virginia Register, and final
public comment.

Action: Update to 18 VAC 15-30-510 and DIBR (Virginia Lead-Based
Paint Activities Regulations)

Current Stage: Fast-Track
e Board authorized filing of fast-track action to amend regulations on 5/12/22.
e Fast-track action in development for submission for Executive Branch review.

Next Step: Executive Branch Review/Public Comment
e Following completion of Executive Branch review, publication of fast-track action in Virginia
Register, and 30-day public comment period.
¢ Amendment becomes effective 15 days after conclusion of public comment period (unless
later date is specified).




September 2022 Home Inspectors

CPE Audit Report

Memo

To: ALHI Board Members

From: Tanya M. Pettus, Board Administrator

Date: 02/09/2022

Re: September 2022 Home Inspectors CPE Audit Report

This memo provides information regarding the September 2022 Home Inspectors CPE
Audit Report.

Sept.21, 2022: The regulant population of home inspectors eligible for audit totaled 148
in Eagles. Twenty-five percent (25%) of the eligible regulant population
was randomly selected, resulting in 33 regulants selected for audit.

Initial letter and CPE audit form mailed to regulants selected

for audit.
Oct. 24, 2022. Due date of CPE audit form and required documentation.
Oct. 28, 2022: Final notices were mailed to unresponsive

regulants with a final deadline of November 11, 2022.

Update: Responses received:
Total Received 33
Passed 33
Incomplete 0

Pending Review

Referred for Disciplinary Action
Surrendered

No Response

o O oo



Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation
Statement of Financial Activity

Board for Asbestos, Lead, and Home Inspectors

954540
2022-2024 Biennium December 2022
Biennium-to-Date Comparison
December 2022 July 2020 - July 2022 -
Activity December 2020 December 2022
Cash/Revenue Balance Brought Forward 66,585
Revenues 18,335 142,634 131,618
Cumulative Revenues 198,203
Cost Categories:
Board Expenditures 3,752 20,453 22,986
Board Administration 12,452 43,722 49,959
Administration of Exams 113 2,089 463
Enforcement 990 2,661 4,211
Legal Services 0 376 50
Information Systems 4,076 28,882 22897
Facilities and Support Services 3,815 23,554 19523
Agency Administration 7,328 20,042 33872
Other / Transfers 0 0 0
Total Expenses 32,525 141,780 153,960
Transfer To/(From) Cash Reserves 0 0 (3,167)
Ending Cash/Revenue Balance 47,410
Cash Reserve Beginning Balance 273,156 276,323
Change in Cash Reserve 0 (3,167)
Cash Reserve Ending Balance 273,156 273,156

Number of Regulants
Current Month 6,054
Previous Biennium-to-Date 6,234




OUTREACH UPDATE




OTHER BOARD BUSINESS




FUTURE MEETING DATES

e May 11,2023
e August 24, 2023
e November 30, 2023




COMPLETE CONFLICT OF INTEREST
FORMS AND

TRAVEL VOUCHERS




ADJOURN
Please return your documents to Raven Custer
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 01                           NOTE:  The hearing commences at

 02  2:00 p.m., as follows:

 03                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Good afternoon.

 04  My name is Julie Jackson-Bailey.  I'm a designee of the

 05  Board.  This is an informal fact-finding conference to

 06  hear additional information regarding the regulatory

 07  issues involved with your application for licensure.

 08                      Assisting with the IFF conference

 09  today is Danielle Jones.  In addition, we have a court

 10  reporter present.  The court reporter will make a

 11  transcript of everything that is said and that

 12  transcript will become an official part of your file.

 13                      I now convene the conference to

 14  accept presentation from those individuals who are

 15  present.  A couple of things before we get started.  If

 16  you will, please speak slowly and clearly so that the

 17  court reporter can make an accurate transcript.

 18                      Also, if Ms. Jones or I are

 19  attempting to ask you a question, if you will please let

 20  us ask the entire question before you begin responding.

 21  That way we're not speaking over each other.  Okay?

 22                      MR. STEWART:  Yes, ma'am.

 23                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  All right.  At

 24  this time if you could, please state your full name and

 25  mailing address for the record.

�0005

 01                      MR. STEWART:  Garrett Lewis Stewart

 02  133 McGregor Drive, Blue Ridge, Virginia 24064.

 03                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  And are

 04  your mother and grandmother going to speak on your

 05  behalf today?

 06                      MR. STEWART:  Yes.

 07                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  If they

 08  will, can they both please state their full names and

 09  mailing address for the record as well.

 10                      MS. ELISA STEWART:  Yes.  My name IS

 11  Elisa Dawn Stewart, mailing address, 133 McGregor Drive,

 12  Blue Ridge, Virginia 24064.

 13                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Thank you.

 14                      MS. NANCY STEWART:  My name is Nancy

 15  Stewart.  My mailing address is 133 McGregor Drive, Blue

 16  Ridge, Virginia 24064.

 17                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Thank you.  At

 18  this time I would like to ask Ms. Jones to please

 19  introduce the exhibits into the record.

 20                      MS. JONES:  At this time I'm going

 21  to introduce the exhibits into the record.  These would

 22  have been the documents that you would have received

 23  prior to today's conference.

 24                      Board Exhibit 1 is the informal

 25  fact-finding conference referral memorandum.  It
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 01  contains the applicant's application as well as other

 02  documents.

 03                      Board Exhibit 2 is the notice of

 04  informal fact-finding conference dated October 4th,

 05  2022.  Board Exhibits 1 and 2 were delivered on October

 06  5th, 2022, via UPS to the address of record.

 07                      Board Exhibits 3 and 4 are

 08  additional documentation for Department of Professional

 09  and Occupational Regulation license look up, information

 10  from its website, and a notice of additional documents.

 11                      Both of these documents were

 12  delivered via UPS as well as via e-mail to the applicant

 13  on October 28th, 2022.  I'm sorry, October 24th, 2022.

 14                      Board Exhibit 5 is a notice of

 15  additional documents dated October 26th, 2022.  It

 16  contained Stewart Exhibit 2 which is a statement of

 17  chronical of events submitted by the applicant.

 18                      That was delivered on October the

 19  28th, 2022.  And we also have a letter of recommendation

 20  from -- for the applicant which was dated October 17th,

 21  2022, and October 21st, 2022, for a total of three

 22  additional documents which are letters of recommendation

 23  that were received via e-mail on October 24th, 2022.

 24  Those are all of the exhibits.

 25                           NOTE:  The above referred to
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 01  documents are now being marked as Board Exhibit Nos. 1

 02  through 5 and Stewart Exhibit Nos. 1 and 2,

 03  respectively.

 04                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Thank you.  Mr.

 05  Stewart, we were referred your application in order to

 06  obtain more information regarding your prior criminal

 07  convictions which you indicated on your application for

 08  licensure.

 09                      So what we're going to do is we're

 10  going to talk about that today and then we will from

 11  there talk about your plans moving forward if you're

 12  granted licensure and some of your work and educational

 13  history.  Okay?

 14                      MR. STEWART:  Yes, ma'am.

 15                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  All right.  And

 16  just before we begin, if for any reason we lose you at

 17  any time on this conference, please just try to get back

 18  on the line or stay on the line if you didn't lose

 19  connection and we will attempt to reconnect.  Okay?

 20                      MR. STEWART:  Okay.  Absolutely.  We

 21  all know how technology can be sometimes.

 22                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Exactly.  Okay.

 23  The incident that I want to discuss today is your

 24  convictions on January 12th, 2021.

 25                      This was in the Circuit Court for
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 01  Botetourt, Virginia.  You were convicted of assault on a

 02  law enforcement, a felony, and also assault, a

 03  misdemeanor.  Both of those incidents occurred on June

 04  18th, 2020.

 05                      It looks like for the first

 06  conviction you were sentenced to two years of

 07  incarceration with one year and six months suspended

 08  followed by two years of supervised probation along with

 09  court costs.

 10                      And then for the second charge, the

 11  misdemeanor assault, you were sentenced to 12 months of

 12  incarceration with 11 months suspended followed by two

 13  years of supervised probation.

 14                      And I know you've provided some

 15  information in the record as to what exactly happened,

 16  but if you will walk me through what happened that led

 17  to those convictions, I would appreciate it.

 18                      MR. STEWART:  Okay.  So I was just

 19  freshly diagnosed with autism, ADHD, OCD, and a few

 20  other, you know, minor things and I really didn't know

 21  anything about it.  I was just finding out, you know,

 22  that I had all that and that's why I, you know, think

 23  differently.

 24                      I used to have horrendous social

 25  problems, problems talking with people but, you know,
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 01  some intelligence came with that, but -- so when this

 02  incident happened, you know, I was just finding all of

 03  this out and, you know, I had a meltdown from the new

 04  medications that I was on.

 05                      They tried several different

 06  combinations of antidepressants and stuff like that

 07  that, you know, really put me in bad shape to the point

 08  where, for example, they prescribed me Prozac one time

 09  and that had me seeing tiny mites in the carpet.  I had

 10  hallucinations from it.

 11                      So the medication that I was on that

 12  night was newly prescribed, didn't really know much of

 13  anything about it and I was very stressed out.  I was

 14  over at a friend's house and, you know, I had a few

 15  drinks and little did I know those drinks had a bad

 16  reaction with the alcohol, or I mean with the medication

 17  that I was on.

 18                      I don't remember anything at all

 19  from that night.  I mean, I totally blacked out.  So

 20  what happens from, you know, the officers and from, you

 21  know, my friends that were there, you know, as witnesses

 22  I cut my hand and my foot on some kind of glass.

 23                      My friends called the EMS and so the

 24  EMS that showed up they couldn't figure out, you know,

 25  what had happened.  I was just having, you know, a
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 01  meltdown from the medications.

 02                      And then the police came as they

 03  usually do with EMS.  They follow shortly after, and

 04  they were trying to, you know, talk to me and stuff and

 05  I ended up getting spit on them.

 06                      After that had happened, you know, I

 07  blacked out.  I woke up in the hospital at around five

 08  or six in the morning, no idea where I was, you know,

 09  after that I very quickly called the officers and I

 10  profusely apologized because that's just -- that's not

 11  me.

 12                      That's -- I mean, I didn't even

 13  remember it happening.  It was like somebody stole my

 14  body and went, you know, active like that.  I was

 15  absolutely horrified.

 16                      And so one of the officers he was,

 17  you know, a little bit had gotten on his -- on his face

 18  or something like that, and so the force had made him go

 19  to the hospital and he was having to take some kind of

 20  concoction of antibiotics and stuff just to make sure

 21  that I didn't have anything because they didn't know.

 22                      So I immediately told them, I'm

 23  like, hey, you know, what can I do to make this up and

 24  so he offered the suggestion of a blood test.  So I went

 25  immediately that day.  I got a blood test and I sent it
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 01  to them, you know, just so he could rest easy and assure

 02  that I didn't have anything that I could transfer to

 03  him, but I mean, I could never think of another -- I

 04  couldn't think of a worse low in my life.

 05                      I mean, I've never -- I would never

 06  ever dream of acting like that.  So that is the

 07  situation, ma'am.

 08                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  And then

 09  did you spend any time incarcerated for these

 10  convictions?

 11                      MR. STEWART:  Yes, I did.  They gave

 12  me the minimum sentence for each of these.

 13                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  So did

 14  you serve, what was it, it looks like it would have been

 15  around seven months incarcerated?

 16                      MR. STEWART:  Yeah, but in the State

 17  of Virginia, for misdemeanors you only serve 50 percent

 18  time and for felonies you serve 85 percent time, so it

 19  was actually a little bit less than that.  It's right --

 20                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Do you recall

 21  about --

 22                      MR. STEWART:  -- right at around six

 23  months.

 24                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Right at around

 25  six months you said?
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 01                      MR. STEWART:  Yes.

 02                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  And I

 03  believe in one of your statements in the record you

 04  mentioned that you accepted a plea deal; is that

 05  correct?

 06                      MR. STEWART:  Yes, ma'am.

 07                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And if I

 08  recall, you said the reason you went ahead and did that

 09  was because of the stress and the anxiety dealing with

 10  this; is that correct?

 11                      MR. STEWART:  I accepted the plea

 12  deal because whether I was blacked out or not, those

 13  actions were, of course, taken by me and I own up to my

 14  mistakes.

 15                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  While

 16  you were incarcerated, did you take any classes or

 17  participate in any rehabilitative programs?

 18                      MR. STEWART:  There were actually

 19  none available in Botetourt County, but I was seeing a

 20  therapist in there.

 21                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  Are you

 22  under supervised probation now?

 23                      MR. STEWART:  Yes.  And that ends

 24  July of 2023.

 25                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  What are the
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 01  terms of your supervised probation?

 02                      MR. STEWART:  So I originally got

 03  started off, you know, they were giving me the litany

 04  of, you know, drug tests every week and stuff like that,

 05  and then they moved to unsupervised probation where I

 06  call in once a month on the 15th.

 07                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  So when

 08  you were doing the weekly drug test that was under

 09  supervised probation, how long were you under supervised

 10  probation?

 11                      MR. STEWART:  A couple of months,

 12  maybe three months.

 13                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  And then

 14  they switched you to unsupervised, correct?

 15                      MR. STEWART:  Yes.  It's a shadow

 16  track system is what it's called.

 17                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Based on the

 18  fact that they moved you from supervised to the shadow

 19  track system, I assume that none of those weekly drug

 20  tests came back positive; is that correct?

 21                      MR. STEWART:  Yes, ma'am.  I am not

 22  a drug user.

 23                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  Are

 24  there any other terms of your probation?  Did you have

 25  to complete any community service or do anything like
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 01  that?

 02                      MR. STEWART:  No.

 03                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  You mentioned

 04  that when you were incarcerated that you were seeing a

 05  therapist.  Are you still seeing anyone?

 06                      MR. STEWART:  No, not anymore.  I do

 07  however still go -- I have some Facebook groups and

 08  stuff that I'm in for autism.  I also do a lot of

 09  research myself and there's even -- what's the name of

 10  that one group?

 11                      MS. ELISA STEWART:  Allen Beach

 12  Autism.

 13                      MR. STEWART:  I'm also in the Allen

 14  Beach Autism group.  It's sort of like a -- it's like a

 15  group conference call that happens on Zoom.

 16                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  Can you

 17  repeat the name of that, please.

 18                      MS. ELISA STEWART:  Allen Beach.

 19                      MR. STEWART:  Allen Beach.

 20                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Allen,

 21  A-L-L-E-N?

 22                      MR. STEWART:  Yes.

 23                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And Beach,

 24  B-E-A-C-H?

 25                      MR. STEWART:  Yes, ma'am.
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 01                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  And what

 02  are those types of calls for?  It's like a group?

 03                      MR. STEWART:  It's basically just a

 04  group of people and everybody in the group has autism

 05  but, you know, we talk about, you know, the different

 06  problems that we have because autism can present itself

 07  in many different forms with different people and

 08  different severities, like, for example mine I get, you

 09  know, social awkwardness.

 10                      I might have a hard time responding

 11  to some things or, well, I used to until I really

 12  started working on things.  Now I'm very fluent in

 13  conversation, and I'm able to get out and socialize more

 14  after all the rehabilitative stuff that I've done.

 15                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  And you

 16  said that when this incident happened they were

 17  attempting to get you on medication or get your dosing

 18  to the point that it worked for you.  Have they been

 19  able to achieve that now?

 20                      MR. STEWART:  Yes.  I'm taking

 21  Adderall right now for my ADHD and that -- that really

 22  helps me.  For example, when I was going on home

 23  inspections with my grandfather, it greatly increased,

 24  you know, my responsiveness and my attention to detail.

 25                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  Have you
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 01  had any other convictions besides those two that we've

 02  spoken about?

 03                      MR. STEWART:  No, ma'am.

 04                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  Can you

 05  walk me through your past work history where you've

 06  worked and the time frames that you've worked there?

 07                      MR. STEWART:  It's going to be kind

 08  of difficult.  Are you talking about going all the way

 09  back to like high school age?

 10                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Well, since

 11  high school.  Following high school, please.

 12                      MR. STEWART:  So up until, you know,

 13  the whole, you know, problems with my grandpa losing his

 14  licensure I was working for him.

 15                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  And is that the

 16  Master Home Inspections I think is the name?

 17                      MR. STEWART:  Yeah.  I was basically

 18  just going along and helping out.  I began that around

 19  2018, June 1st.

 20                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  When did you

 21  graduate?

 22                      MR. STEWART:  And that was after my

 23  Liberty graduation.

 24                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  So you

 25  graduated in 2018?
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 01                      MR. STEWART:  Yes.  May 19th, 2018,

 02  I took my senior year online and went to university.

 03                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  What

 04  have you been doing since 2021?

 05                      MR. STEWART:  Pretty much just, you

 06  know, doing research, helping around the house.  I mean,

 07  we've really been dead in the water, you know, a lot of

 08  jobs, a little bit of construction here and there.  I

 09  help my mom's boyfriend with some of his work.

 10                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  What type of

 11  work does he do?  Is that construction?

 12                      MR. STEWART:  Yeah.  He works at WO

 13  Grubbs.

 14                      MR. STEWART:  So that's not like

 15  official.  I just, you know, do that to help him.  I'm

 16  not doing anything for pay right now.

 17                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.

 18                      MR. STEWART:  I've pretty much just

 19  been, you know, waiting on my licensure here.

 20                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  Have you

 21  taken any college or trade school classes?

 22                      MR. STEWART:  Yes, I have.  I was

 23  actually certified for welding back in high school.  I

 24  did one year of construction classes in high school, so

 25  that's like electrical, plumbing, construction, brick

�0018

 01  laying.

 02                      Then for the other two and a half

 03  years I was doing welding classes full time every day,

 04  and that was with -- I did some online stuff with Dabney

 05  S. Lancaster while I was in high school.

 06                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  What was the

 07  name of that again, Dabney?

 08                      MR. STEWART:  Dabney S. Lancaster.

 09  That was who sponsored the trade classes at Vtech and at

 10  the Botetourt Technical Educational Center.

 11                      After that I did loads of online

 12  classes with InterNACHI and I forgot what the name of

 13  the school is that I got my in hour classroom training

 14  done with, ITA Inspection School.

 15                      So I did all my classes with

 16  InterNACHI and ITA ever since, you know, my welding

 17  stuff because I kind of decided that wasn't really what

 18  I wanted to do and I really wanted to be a home

 19  inspector and carry on the family legacy.

 20                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  And it

 21  looks like at the beginning of this year you passed the

 22  Virginia State home inspector exam.

 23                      MR. STEWART:  Yes, ma'am.

 24                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  And the

 25  person that verified your experience was your
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 01  grandfather, correct?

 02                      MR. STEWART:  Yes.

 03                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  And you

 04  had mentioned just a moment ago that he had lost his

 05  license with us previously.  Are you aware of the

 06  circumstances that transpired that led to that?

 07                      MR. STEWART:  Yes, I'm aware

 08  somewhat.

 09                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Were you -- I'm

 10  sorry.

 11                      MR. STEWART:  I've -- I've heard

 12  bits and pieces of it.

 13                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  Were you

 14  involved with any of those inspections, helping with

 15  those?

 16                      MR. STEWART:  The one in Danville a

 17  little bit I was there.

 18                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.

 19                      MR. STEWART:  And the one in

 20  Lexington.

 21                      MR. STEWART:  However I did not do

 22  the inspections or whatnot in question.

 23                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.

 24                      MR. STEWART:  I didn't do anything,

 25  like, I didn't do anything on the report.  I was still
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 01  in training.

 02                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Besides working

 03  with your grandfather, have you worked any other home

 04  inspectors?

 05                      MR. STEWART:  No, I have not, and

 06  I've done somewhere north of about 1000 to 1200 by now,

 07  not done them done them, but I've been on them.

 08                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  What are

 09  your plans moving forward if you are granted licensure?

 10                      MR. STEWART:  I plan to eventually

 11  take over the family business.  My mom is sort of our

 12  head, you know, my grandpa is getting old and he can't

 13  really, you know, he's old.

 14                      I mean, I'm going to need to take

 15  over and it's our family legacy.  It's been around since

 16  about 21 years ago and, you know, I really -- I take

 17  pride in my work, and I believe as a home inspector I

 18  can really make a difference in people's lives.

 19                      I mean, I've met a lot of really

 20  good people and, you know, we've helped a lot of really

 21  good people out with home inspections and, you know,

 22  helping them with maintenance stuff.

 23                      Honestly, I just enjoy helping

 24  people, and with home inspections it's something that my

 25  ADHD and ASD mind are really able to wrap themselves
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 01  around, you know, I've gained an immense amount of

 02  experience and knowledge in this industry now and I've

 03  really grown a passion for it.

 04                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Ms. Jones, do

 05  you have any questions?

 06                      MS. JONES:  Yes.  I just had a

 07  question regarding the time in which you were

 08  incarcerated on one letter that you submitted.

 09                      MR. STEWART:  Yes, ma'am.

 10                      MS. JONES:  Give me just one moment

 11  so that I can find the excerpt.  It's not here.  My

 12  question was it looks as if while you were incarcerated

 13  it says that they removed you from your medications; is

 14  that correct?

 15                      MR. STEWART:  Yes.

 16                      MS. JONES:  So --

 17                      MR. STEWART:  Yes.  I wasn't allowed

 18  to take it at all during my time in there.

 19                      MS. JONES:  So how did you manage

 20  without being with your medication until you were

 21  released several months later?

 22                      MR. STEWART:  You know, I've got to

 23  say out of this whole situation that's something that

 24  I'm actually kind of thankful for because I'm not going

 25  to lie.  At first it was hard.  It was tough being in
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 01  there.

 02                      I'm not the kind of person that does

 03  well in jail.  I'm too nice.  I actually got that a lot.

 04  I'm way too nice, but with being without my medication

 05  and being around unsavory characters let's just say I

 06  learned how to properly socialize with different let's

 07  just say personality types.

 08                      I learned how to, you know, speak up

 09  for myself.  I learned how to have, you know, full

 10  conversations.  I learned how to make small talk.  A lot

 11  of the issues that I was, you know, suffering was with

 12  my ASD back before I knew how to control it where, you

 13  know, I was able to fix those myself in that amount of

 14  time.

 15                      I also did a lot of reading on

 16  autism.  My mom sent me books in about, you know, what

 17  it means to be autistic and how things -- how that can

 18  affect your brain.

 19                      And I learned a lot of really good

 20  useful information and graphic techniques, and I learned

 21  how to control the way that my brain thinks differently,

 22  you know, I've made leaps and bounds since then.

 23                      And now, like, I'll take my

 24  medication if I have something that I need to do that

 25  day, you know, something important when I really need to
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 01  focus, but I've gotten to the point where I only take my

 02  medication as needed.

 03                      So on days where I'm not really

 04  doing anything, I'm just fine without medication.  I

 05  might drink a lot of caffeine but, you know, I've made

 06  leaps and bounds and, you know, my mental health, I've

 07  amazed myself and everybody around me.

 08                      MS. JONES:  Okay.  So you're saying

 09  that you're able to manage without medication at this

 10  point?

 11                      MR. STEWART:  Yes.  The medication

 12  at this point is mainly just for the ADHD.  I got my ASD

 13  symptoms completely under control.  I just get a little

 14  squirrelly brained with my ADHD sometimes and that's

 15  when I take it.

 16                      MS. JONES:  Okay.  Thank you.

 17                      MR. STEWART:  Yes, ma'am.

 18                      MS. JONES:  Oh, my next question,

 19  are there any other inspectors in your area in which you

 20  could train under?

 21                      MR. STEWART:  No.  There's not --

 22  not a lot around here.  That's one of the reasons why we

 23  had our corner in the market a while back, and the ones

 24  that are present just aren't willing to train other

 25  inspectors.  It can be a dog eat dog market.
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 01                      MS. JONES:  And my last question is

 02  we received a letter of recommendation from Heather

 03  Stewart.  Can you tell me what is her relationship to

 04  you?

 05                      MR. STEWART:  Heather is my aunt and

 06  she works as a paralegal at Carillion.

 07                      MS. JONES:  All right.  I was just

 08  trying to -- those are all the questions I have.  Thank

 09  you.

 10                      MR. STEWART:  All right.  Thank you.

 11                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Do either your

 12  mother or your grandmother wish to speak on your behalf

 13  at this time?  And if you could just indicate which one

 14  is -- I'm sorry.

 15                      MR. STEWART:  My mother will start.

 16                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.

 17                      MS. ELISA STEWART:  Hi.  My name is

 18  Elisa Stewart.  I'm Garret's mom and I'm not really

 19  great at public speaking.  I'm sorry if I'm a little

 20  nervous.  I'm actually kind of glad we're doing this by

 21  phone instead of standing up because I'm kind of shaking

 22  like a leaf, so sorry about that.

 23                      But I just really wanted to say how

 24  much of a difference Garrett has really made socially

 25  and in his life in the last couple of years since that
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 01  incident in particular, the felony incident.

 02                      First of all, his attorney said that

 03  if he -- if that had happened about a hundred yards

 04  towards Roanoke, he would have been in Roanoke and they

 05  actually would have taken him to the hospital for

 06  psychiatric evaluation.

 07                      And they also would have found the

 08  fact that he had autism and that a lot of his meltdown

 09  was likely due to his autism.

 10                      At that time he was really

 11  struggling with, you know, not understanding how his

 12  brain was working and why he was so different.  He has

 13  been through school and stuff and picked on for being

 14  different.

 15                      And he always got nervous in social

 16  situations talking with people.  He probably got that a

 17  little bit from me but, you know, he had difficulty,

 18  like looking people in the face when he was talking to

 19  them, shaking hands, you know, talking about the normal,

 20  you know, casual conversations types of things.

 21                      He didn't know how to make small

 22  talk.  He was genius level on the topics that interested

 23  him and, for example, you know, like the military and

 24  the wars that our country has been through throughout

 25  his history, you ask him any questions about that and
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 01  he's an absolute expert.

 02                      He can talk about any of it.  He

 03  remembers those dates and those facts and that

 04  information, but when it came to this normal talking,

 05  like, how's the weather on your side of town, he really

 06  struggled.

 07                      And after that incident -- well,

 08  about the time of that incident actually he was supposed

 09  to be starting his autism therapy with Ella Pecsock who

 10  had diagnosed him with a team of doctors.

 11                      And they were going to start the

 12  therapy with him, but because of the COVID situation,

 13  that kept getting delayed because they were having

 14  issues setting up the distance visits and such.

 15                      But it was shortly that, I can't

 16  remember the exact month, that they did begin a lot of

 17  that treatment and therapy.  He started reading books.

 18  I started reading stuff.

 19                      I've done hundreds of hours of

 20  research about autism including being in some groups

 21  with other families and parents who are, you know, whose

 22  kids were diagnosed at an older age.

 23                      And so that helped a lot.  He's gone

 24  through, you know, work books and figuring out what his

 25  particular issues are with autism.  With it being a
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 01  spectrum disease you have people who are all the way at

 02  one end of the spectrum that aren't verbal and have

 03  issues doing basic math, and they'll never be able to

 04  take care of themselves.

 05                      Garrett tends to be at the lower end

 06  of the spectrum where very high intelligence is common.

 07  They used to call it the Asperger's level of the

 08  spectrum.  I don't know if you're familiar with that,

 09  but it tended to be more social issues and that's where

 10  Garrett was at with the social issues.

 11                      As a child he'd get into crying jags

 12  and things when he got overloaded socially in a

 13  different setting and I -- I always thought it was the

 14  ADHD.

 15                      Now, we know it was the autism and

 16  it seems like just knowing what it is that's been going

 17  on in his brain all these years has really helped him to

 18  figure out how to combat that, you know, when he starts

 19  to feel stressed he retreats, you know, and he takes a

 20  few minutes.

 21                      And he'll walk around and maybe pet

 22  the dog, you know, I know in several inspections, you

 23  know, while we were still doing them, he was really big

 24  on the pets and would spend time with the animals as he

 25  started to get tired, like mentally tired, or feeling
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 01  socially overwhelmed when there were huge amounts of

 02  people at the inspection.

 03                      But he has made great strides with

 04  that.  Garrett has always been a responsible kid around

 05  the house, you know, doing chores and taking care of

 06  things without being asked to do so.

 07                      My mom and I are not super

 08  physically able to do a lot of the heavy lifting things,

 09  you know, mowing the yard and things like that.  Garrett

 10  takes care of that, so he's a particularly responsible

 11  young man.

 12                      And I hope that you guys will find

 13  it in your hearts to understand, you know, that he was

 14  still working through some -- some mental health issues

 15  and has a really good handle on it now.

 16                      And, you know, he's been going on

 17  inspections with my father since he was about seven or

 18  eight years old.  He would go on spring break, you know,

 19  while I was working he was out working with my dad and

 20  he always loved going with my dad on the home

 21  inspections.

 22                      So this is something that he grew up

 23  doing and having fun with.  He loves it.  He enjoys it

 24  and because we're able to, you know, set the schedule

 25  for him, you know, he can take the time that he needs
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 01  to, you know, go see a therapist, you know, if

 02  necessary.

 03                      Sometimes it's just a phone call to

 04  say, hey, just wanted to talk about, you know, a

 05  difficult situation I ran into, but his therapist has

 06  been really good with him and so he's -- he's made great

 07  strides in the last couple of years and this is what he

 08  really, really wants to do is home inspections.

 09                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  Thank

 10  you.

 11                      MS. ELISE STEWART:  Did y'all have

 12  any questions for me?

 13                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Not at this

 14  time.

 15                      MS. ELISE STEWART:  Okay.  And I'll

 16  go ahead and hand the phone over to my mother.

 17                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  Thank

 18  you.

 19                      MS. NANCY STEWART:  Hi.  I'm Nancy

 20  Stewart and I am Garrett's grandmother, and he and his

 21  mom both live with me here together.

 22                      And Elisa pretty much covered I

 23  think all the basis, and I just want to reiterate that

 24  until Garrett was diagnosed with the autism spectrum,

 25  he's just -- he's a totally different person.
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 01                      And I have to credit his mother with

 02  some of that in that she has provided him materials to

 03  read so he can understand what aspect of the ASD affects

 04  him.

 05                      And Garrett is also a reader.  If he

 06  doesn't know something he's going to look it up and find

 07  it, and he does that even in home inspection.

 08                      And while I'm not there on the home

 09  inspection, I hear all the stories when they come back

 10  and stuff that Garrett has figured out, and in all the

 11  inspections which there are many that he has been in

 12  training with his grandfather there has never, ever been

 13  not one complaint.

 14                      In fact, there have been praises for

 15  Garrett especially issues.  He's excellent in that and

 16  comes in handy around my house actually.  It's kind of

 17  nice to have a good home inspector in the house and he

 18  can fix things and I appreciate it.

 19                      And Garrett has never ever been a

 20  violent person, ever.  And this -- the situation with

 21  the officers was just totally off base and he didn't

 22  know what was going on and was bleeding all over the

 23  place.

 24                      And it's very unfortunate that the

 25  officers -- there were two officers.  There was an old
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 01  officer and then there was a young newly hired police

 02  officer that was there.

 03                      And the older officer would not

 04  press charges against him as a felony.  The younger, he

 05  was going to press the charges and I mean, we couldn't

 06  do anything about that, but it was a very unfortunate

 07  situation.

 08                      We're very thankful now that Garrett

 09  has been diagnosed and he knows a lot about the spectrum

 10  that he has in autism, and he's taken every step to sort

 11  of, you know, I want to say fix himself, but that's not

 12  really a good explanation.  But he -- he just

 13  understands it now and he knows the triggers and -- and

 14  he's learned how to cope with it.

 15                      And he does an excellent job where

 16  before socially the autism spectrum symptoms that he has

 17  is with the social outlet.  He's highly intelligent and

 18  he's a great kid.

 19                      And I really hope that you can take

 20  all this into consideration in allowing him to go an and

 21  pursue his profession in the home inspection business,

 22  which he actually really loves and it is a passion for

 23  him.  Thank you for your time.

 24                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Thank you.  Can

 25  I ask you one question and this we're bringing up -- was
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 01  it -- is your husband Mark Stewart?

 02                      MS. NANCY STEWART:  He is my

 03  ex-husband.  We are divorced.

 04                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Oh, ex-husband.

 05  Okay.

 06                      MS. NANCY STEWART:  Yes, ma'am.

 07                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Is anybody

 08  there able to speak on the reason for him not continuing

 09  with his license?  It looks like he failed to comply

 10  with terms of the consent order.

 11                      I don't know if maybe your daughter

 12  is better able to answer.  Just since Garrett's

 13  experience came from working with him, I think it would

 14  be good for the Board to -- to hear some of the

 15  reasoning behind that maybe.

 16                      MS. ELISA STEWART:  Okay.  It's

 17  Elisa back on the phone again.

 18                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Thank you.

 19                      MS. ELISA STEWART:  Yes.  My

 20  understanding from my dad and he's, you know, kind of

 21  kept this to himself.  He's -- he's very verbal but not

 22  necessarily in the ways that are good for sharing that

 23  kind of information with us.

 24                      I think he was a little embarrassed

 25  by it.  He is currently actually taking classes through

�0033

 01  InterNACHI to try to restore his license.  At the time

 02  he did not -- I'm not sure why -- why he let that lapse.

 03                      I really don't know.  I know that

 04  there was some health struggles at the time and then, of

 05  course, this last winter, you know, COVID went through

 06  our family like wild fire.

 07                      In fact, my mother was hospitalized

 08  for it and -- and Garrett got it really badly, like he

 09  would have gone and taken his test in December if he had

 10  not come down with COVID on his birthday and been sick

 11  well into January.

 12                      So the soonest that he could get in

 13  to take his exam was January of this year I believe it

 14  was, and so I think with the -- the health issues,

 15  because my dad does have some heart troubles that he

 16  takes medication for, I think between the heart issues

 17  and then the COVID it was really messing with him.

 18                      He wasn't himself and I can -- you

 19  know, I say that he's 76, you know, and he was really

 20  struggling health wise last fall and winter.

 21                      He had gone through a series of

 22  colds which is very unlike him.  My dad went his entire

 23  life, I never saw him sick, until he had his triple

 24  bypass back I can't remember what year that was.

 25                      I think it was 2012 or '13,
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 01  somewhere in there, never saw him sick until all of a

 02  sudden he was in the hospital having bypass surgery, and

 03  then this last year he started struggling with his

 04  health.

 05                      That appears to have gone away.

 06  He's, you know, returning to his normal, jovial charming

 07  self and -- and being more social now, but back at the

 08  time I think he was really struggling and I think that

 09  that -- the whole deal with the inspection, the

 10  Lexington inspection where the guy went to DPOR, I am

 11  not -- I'm not sure specifically, you know, why my dad

 12  handled the thing as he did, but I know that that really

 13  bothered him because he had never had complaints before.

 14                      He had never, you know, been held

 15  back and, you know, asked to pay for stuff and things

 16  like that.  He had always had a really good reputation.

 17  He never marketed or advertised.

 18                      It was word of mouth, and so it was

 19  people that just knew him and loved his inspection

 20  report and how he conveyed information to people that

 21  kept people calling and keeping him busy.

 22                      And, you know, when that came I

 23  think it was a real blow to him because, you know, when

 24  you get older, he's said this many times.  He feels

 25  useless sometimes and I think his age was really

�0035

 01  bothering him and that complaint it was like -- I don't

 02  know.  I think for him it was a big slap in the face.

 03                      I think he was just emotionally

 04  upset over that and it's taken him a little while to

 05  recover from that, and -- but beyond that I really don't

 06  know all of the details of, you know, his handling of

 07  that.  Did you have any other questions in regards to

 08  that?

 09                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  No, not

 10  specifically.  I think the big thing is -- is assuring

 11  the Board that the training that Garrett received or Mr.

 12  Stewart received was, you know, adequate and/or thorough

 13  enough.

 14                      That's the reason why I wanted to

 15  bring it up since there was a note from the Board that

 16  the verifier had an issue with the license previously.

 17  You mentioned that he was taken -- I'm sorry.

 18                      MS. ELISA STEWART:  I'm sorry.  Go

 19  ahead.

 20                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  You mentioned

 21  that he was -- you mentioned that he was taking classes

 22  and hopes to restore his license; is that correct?

 23                      MS. ELISA STEWART:  Yes, ma'am.

 24  He's already completed several classes and, you know,

 25  it's just a, you know, a matter of completing certain
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 01  ones that he really wanted to get under his belt to send

 02  in.  I know that he's e-mailed me several certificates

 03  already to send into DPOR for him because he couldn't

 04  figure out how to keep them attached to an e-mail.

 05                      But he had sent them to me just this

 06  week.  I believe it was yesterday I got those in my

 07  e-mail.  It might have been Sunday.  It was either

 08  yesterday or the day before that he sent those to me, so

 09  he's got several certificates to send in.

 10                      He's got something like 30 to 40

 11  hours of classes that he's taken.

 12                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Do you know if

 13  he's reapplied yet or is going to?

 14                      MS. ELISA STEWART:  No.  I don't

 15  believe he has reapplied but I know that he intends to.

 16                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  Mr.

 17  Stewart, is there anything that you would like to add

 18  that I have not asked about?

 19                      MR. STEWART:  No, ma'am.  I believe

 20  that would be it.

 21                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  Ms.

 22  Jones, do you have anything additionally?

 23                      MS. JONES:  I just had one other

 24  question.  Mr. Stewart, were you represented at the time

 25  that you were convicted?
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 01                      MR. STEWART:  Yes, ma'am.

 02                      MS. JONES:  Do you have any

 03  indication as to why you received I guess -- I guess the

 04  sentence that you did why it was treated more as a

 05  criminal matter rather than -- as far as sentencing is

 06  concerned rather than a medical one if you had, I guess

 07  a well documented medical record with I guess your, I

 08  guess the mental health issues?

 09                      MR. STEWART:  Because the State of

 10  Virginia for an assault on a police officer they require

 11  a mandatory minimum six months sentence no matter what.

 12  They couldn't have been lenient with me in court if they

 13  wanted to.

 14                      MS. ELISA STEWART:  I think the

 15  question was more because you had been diagnosed with

 16  autism and was tested and had all those results.  Why

 17  didn't you rely on that instead of, you know, --

 18                      MR. STEWART:  Oh, well, it was -- I

 19  mean, I absolutely mentioned that to them, but Botetourt

 20  County Court isn't exactly known for being fair.  Like

 21  my mom had said, if this happened in Roanoke, they would

 22  have seen that it was a mental health thing rather than

 23  a criminal thing, and that is what my attorney had told

 24  everybody.

 25                      MS. ELISA STEWART:  Botetourt County
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 01  does not have a lot of resources when it comes to mental

 02  health treatment.  We end up going into Roanoke which is

 03  our neighboring county, Roanoke County, Roanoke City.

 04                      And his attorney, Cory, he told us

 05  that if this had happened a hundred yards towards

 06  Roanoke, he would have been in Roanoke in the county

 07  line, and he would have been taken to the hospital and

 08  given a psychiatric evaluation instead of criminal

 09  charges.

 10                      They would have treated it as a

 11  mental health issue, but they don't have those resources

 12  in Botetourt County.

 13                      MR. STEWART:  They don't have a

 14  mental health court docket in Botetourt either.

 15                      MS. ELISA STEWART:  No.

 16                      MS. JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

 17                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Is there

 18  anything else?

 19                      MR. STEWART:  No.  Thank you.

 20                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  If

 21  there's nothing further, let me explain the process

 22  going forward.

 23                      Based upon everything I've heard and

 24  everything I've read, I'll put my thoughts together into

 25  a written recommendation.
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 01                      The Department will mail you a copy

 02  of my recommendation along with a letter letting you

 03  know the date and time where the full Board will meet to

 04  make a final decision concerning your application.

 05                      You're welcome to attend that Board

 06  meeting but you do not have to.  If you do attend the

 07  Board meeting, the Board will give you an opportunity of

 08  about five minutes to address the full Board before they

 09  make their final decision.

 10                      Generally what happens is the Board

 11  will briefly hear from you.  They'll discuss your case.

 12  Then they'll vote right then and there that day.  So if

 13  you do attend the Board meeting, you'll know the final

 14  outcome concerning your application that same day.

 15                      If you choose not to attend or

 16  you're unable to do so, the Board will still follow up

 17  with you in writing a few days after the Board meeting.

 18  One thing you need to understand is that I can recommend

 19  yes and the full Board can say no or the other way

 20  around.

 21                      It's a majority vote of the entire

 22  Board that makes the final decision.  Do you have any

 23  additional questions for me concerning any of that?

 24                      MR. STEWART:  No, ma'am.  Thank you.

 25                      MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Okay.  If
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 01  there's nothing further, then I'll thank you for your

 02  time and I will conclude the conference and we're off

 03  record.

 04                           NOTE:  The hearing concluded at

 05  3:00 p.m.

 06  
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 01               CERTIFICATE OF COURT REPORTER

 02  

 03                      I, Claudia M. Whisenand, hereby

 04  certify that I was the Court Reporter at the Informal

 05  Fact-Finding Conference regarding Garrett Lewis Stewart,

 06  heard in the County of Henrico, Virginia, on December 6,

 07  2022, at the time of the hearing herein.

 08                      I further certify that the foregoing

 09  transcript is, to the best of my ability, a true and

 10  accurate record of the testimony and incidents of the

 11  hearing herein.

 12                      Given under my hand this 14th day of

 13  December, 2022.

 14  

 15  

 16                           _____________________________

                              Claudia M.  Whisenand

 17                           Notary Registration No. 291277

 18  

 19  My Commission expires:

     October 31, 2025

 20  
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 22  

 23  

 24  

 25  
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 01              NOTE:  The hearing commences at 9:28 a.m.,

 02  as follows:

 03              MS. JACKSON-BAILEY:  Good Morning, my name

 04  is Julie Jackson-Bailey.  This is an Informal

 05  Fact-Finding (IFF) conference.  Today, we have Terrance

 06  Deanes assisting with this IFF conference.  In addition,

 07  we have a court reporter present who will make a

 08  transcript of everything that is said.  I now convene

 09  the conference to accept presentations from those

 10  individuals who are present.

 11              MR. DEANES:  Thank you.  This is the IFF

 12  conference for Yessica Yamileth Armijo Avila.  The Board

 13  has three exhibits to enter into the record.

 14              Board Exhibit No. 1 is the consolidated

 15  application and related documents.

 16              Board Exhibit No. 2 is the Notice of IFF

 17  Conference dated October 18, 2022, and delivered on

 18  October 19, 2022.

 19              Board Exhibit No. 3 is an excerpt from the

 20  Program Operations Manual System (POMS).  It is a Social

 21  Security Number Card history.  And it states, in

 22  pertinent part, there are currently over 50 versions of

 23  the Social Security card.  All of which are valid until

 24  1976.  The original Social Security cards and

 25  replacement cards were different.  The following chart
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 01  lists the changes in the Social Security number cards

 02  with the effective dates.  Those are all of the

 03  exhibits.

 04              The IFF Notice informed Ms. Armijo Avila of

 05  the date, time and location of today's conference.  The

 06  IFF Notice also asked Ms. Armijo Avila to contact the

 07  Department within 10 days of receipt to inform us

 08  whether she would participate in the IFF.  The Notice

 09  was sent by United Parcel Service on the dates that I

 10  read earlier to Ms. Armijo Avila's address of record.  A

 11  receipt indicates that the Notice was delivered to the

 12  address of record on October 19, 2022.  And as of today,

 13  the Department has not had any communication from

 14  Ms. Armijo Avila, or anyone on her behalf, in response

 15  to the IFF Notice.  In addition, prior to the

 16  commencement of the IFF, the Department Staff had an

 17  opportunity to check their e-mail and telephone

 18  voicemail.  And Department Staff has received no

 19  communication from Ms. Armijo Avila.  And there is

 20  nobody present on Ms. Armijo Avila's behalf.

 21              Accordingly, we now conclude the conference.

 22                  (CONCLUDED AT 9:31 A.M.)

 23  
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 01                CERTIFICATE OF COURT REPORTER

 02         I, Stephanie C. Martin, hereby certify that I was

 03  the Court Reporter at the Informal Fact-Finding

 04  Conference regarding Yessica Yamileth Armijo Avila,

 05  heard in the County of Henrico, Virginia, on November

 06  17, 2022, at the time of the hearing herein.

 07         I further certify that the foregoing transcript

 08  is, to the best of my ability, a true and accurate

 09  record of the testimony and incidents of the hearing

 10  herein.

 11         Given under my hand this 22nd day of November

 12  2022.

 13  

                  ____Stephanie C. Martin_______

 14                     STEPHANIE C. MARTIN

                  Notary Registration No. 7984503

 15  

 16  My Commission expires:

     April 30, 2026
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